LOXHORE PARISH COUNCIL MEETING

www.loxhore.org.uk

Minutes

Date: Thursday 4th July 2019

Venue: Loxhore Village Hall

Present: Chris Bryars {Chair}

Mike Young {Vice Chair and Clerk}

Carole Delve {Councillor}
Jane Vanstone {Councillor}

Andrea Davis {Devon County Councillor}

Michael Batson {Parishioner}

Martin Rich {Devon Communities Together}

Freddie Davis {Visitor}

Minutes taken by: Mike Young {Clerk}

The Chair opened the meeting at 17:30.

- 1. Apologies: Received from Di Webber and Malcolm Prowse.
- 2. Declarations of interest: There were none.
- 3. All councillors present agreed that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 9th May 2019 were a true and accurate record of that spoken and the Chair signed accordingly.

4.0	Action points from previous meeting dated 9th May 2019	
4.1	Broadband (see also 16 th November 2017 §6.0, 4 th January 2018 §4.5, 16 th March §4.3,	
4.1		
	25 th May §4.3, 5 th July §4.2, 6 th September §4.2 1 st November §4.1, 3 rd January §4.1, 7 th	
	March §6.1 and 9 th May §4.1 and §7.1)	
	Council voted to allocate up to £1,000 to the scheme if required. This to be paid only	
	when required. MB was informed and RFO reserved the funds.	
	The project is close to being fully funded but Openreach the contractors/installers have to	
	have a contract with an entity and the Parish Council have been approached to sign the	
	contract (This is apparently common according to Openreach). The chair has sought	
	advice from NDDC legal department who advise that the Council should not enter such	
	an agreement where potentially there are financial penalties. Chair will advise Mike	
	Bowden accordingly. Assuming that Parish funds are expended then Council would like	
	to receive back a proportion of any surplus funds from the private Community Interest	CB/
	Company that will be set up to run the contract.	Closed
4.2	Highway Community Enhancement Fund. (7th March §5.4)	
	JM pointed out that the trimmings really need to be cleared and thrown on top of the	
	banks to avoid the build-up of vegetation and the subsequent narrowing of the roads. MP	
	knows someone who could possibly do this and will make enquiries. MP gave details:	
	Darren Phillips 07768 736232. Clerk to contact and get estimate.	

	Dead discussion and the health of the sent discussion of DAC.	
	Road signs also need to be kept clean and visible. Devon Highways have ignored JM's	
	request for better signage at the Halsey Lake telephone box junction so that drivers treat it	
	as a roundabout. MP said that road signs are produced by a workshop in Pottington,	
	complete with the correct fixings. MB will investigate the cost of this. MB ascertained	
	the cost of road signs and installation. Councillors all agreed that this is a Highways	
	responsibility and the estimated £946 should not come from Parish funds. JM has emailed	
	AD to expedite but no replies received. Tracey Blackmore will provide MY with contact	
	in Devon Highways.	
	JM said that more working parties are needed so that the very expensive equipment stored	
	in the shed can be put to good use. CD will organise this later in the year, when the	
	weather improves. JV thought that many people might be keen to do one day's work but	
	then lose their enthusiasm. Date not yet decided, to be notified.	
	May – 1. MY has spoken with Darren several times and is awaiting him to contact when	CD
	free to survey the roads for an estimate. CD to liaise with Darren Phillips re verge	CD
	cleaning.	
	2. Highways Officer for our area is Martin Stoddart. CD to contact him	
	(<u>martin.stoddart@devon.gov.uk</u>) re cleaning signs and also the keep left at Halsey BT	
	phone box.	
	Drains have been cleaned on 3 July by Chris and Jim. Potholes will be done soon. MY	
	has given CD's contacts to Darren as he is still busy farming. AD advised that it is	
	preferable not to contact Martin direct but to use website or general phone numbers, She	
	also said that road signs will not be cleaned as that is something the Parish should do.	CD
4.3	(7 th March §5.1) CD to speak again about the large and potentially dangerous potholes at	
	Lancey Brook. CD has contacted Devon Highways about this problem and has been told	
	that the drain needs jetting to remove the blockages. Jetting has to be done carefully	
	because if the blockage does not move, the high water pressure can cause the road itself to	
	fracture. CD will contact AD to check that this location is on the 'jetting list' and to set up	
	a site meeting with her. Highways came and jetted and all was well for a few days. Then	
	the flooding returned. A grid possibly needs installing to prevent stones from blocking.	
	More work is needed. 2 x Emails received from AD. 'My highway officer has put in a	
	bid for the work to be done, this isn't something that goes to any committee, the decision	
	is taken by officers who are controlling the budget and have knowledge of all the schemes	
	required around Devon. I hope that this scheme does get through of course. I've copied	
	my highway officer into this email so he can see your comments and the defect report,	
	however as far as his role is concerned he has done all the necessary preparation to send	
	off the scheme to the team in County Hall.' And "This is on the list for the next round of	
	drainage funds ,this will need to be worked up and programmed and the screen made so	
	will not be until sometime in the Summer unfortunately the stone will block the drainage	
	in the meantime we will just have to accept that, other than causing some potholes which	
	we will fix when we do the drainage or weather dries up it does not cause any flooding to	
	property or make the road impassable. Unfortunately there are many of these areas over	
	the County, I know you are anxious to see this resolved, fortunately it will be actioned	
	this financial year. I am sorry I cannot give any firm dates however." CD will monitor.	CD
4.4	Loxhore Parish Plan (7 th March §5.2 (a))	
¬. ¬	Following extensive email correspondence between councillors it was agreed that the	
	Parish should not generate a plan. The 3 points in email from MB were:	
	1. Get educated on the planning process at District and County	
	2. Understand the NDDC Housing Plan and the criteria used to judge individual	
	applications.	
	3. Write down our current view on planning for Loxhore, consistent with 1 and 2.	
	The Council have been briefed prior on NDDC planning procedures and an outline of	
	how Loxhore fits in the NDDC housing plan by Tracey Blackmore a Senior Planning	
	Officer at NDDC. This briefing satisfies the first two points of the email. Council	

_		
4.	discussed point 3 and coincidently an email has been received from Community Led Planning and Devon Community Resilience who offer to advise and assist on a Parish Plan, sometimes a Community Plan. Council agreed that contact should be made with the organisation. Clerk will email appropriately. MY has had reply. This was discussed and Council decided with advice from MP that Loxhore does not need it's own Plan as it is adequately covered by NDDC plans. The clerk wrote to Martin Rich and then received an email saying "I'm a little concerned that it is considered that the parish is covered by NDDC plans; this is true of spatial planning, but community plans get into topics that the District and County authorities do not touch. Usually the District Councils are supportive of community plans and regard them as a useful source of information. NDDC have worked alongside us for many years and it is only their loss of capacity that means they are less active today." MY advised Chair who suggested Martin Rich be invited to come and explain and discuss with us. Martin spoke about the advantages of various things that could be included in a plan. Council are content that the recent housing survey which will be published this month along with the comprehensive survey done by the village hall committee satisfy our Parish Plan needs. Therefore, no further action is required. National Trust Accommodation Opportunity (7th March §5.2 (b)) JM reported that she has contacted the National Trust with the suggestion that old stone barns in a poor state of repair, such as those close to the Church, could possibly be sold leasehold to Loxhore people in need of affordable housing. They could then convert them into dwellings. However, she has had no positive response from NT so far. Ray Comer said the NT uses the barns by the Church for storage. MP said that about 25 years ago he also investigated possible conversions of old buildings but the NT made it very difficult so he did not pursue the idea. The NT's policy is apparently to lea	Closed On Hold Clerk
4.	Parish Paths (7 th March §5.4) CB has been checking the parish paths in preparation for completing the annual report in February. He has had trouble contacting Simon Houghton to get the invoice for the work carried out last spring. There are two on-going issues at the moment. The first is path 31 (Red Lane) past the Seggons. While there does not seem to be effluent running onto the path any more, there is still a drain running onto it which will obviously cause erosion over time. CB has asked Simon Houghton for advice on this. The other issue is path 9 between Corner Cottage and Hammonds in Lower Loxhore, which needs a new gate and bridge. Funding is tight and the cost of reinstatement could be disproportionate to the amount of use the path gets. CB will also enquire about installing dog gates in some stiles 7th March 2019 The annual survey of Parish paths has been submitted. Apart from the continuing problem with the path from Corner Cottage in Lower Loxhore to Hammonds, CB reported no	
	problems. He is still having trouble contacting Simon Houghton at DCC who is responsible for our area. CB mentioned this to Ros Davies when submitting the report and she said she would get Simon to contact him but, as yet, he has not heard from him. Ros could not see any reason why we shouldn't install dog gates, subject to contacting the landowners first. CB will continue to chase Simon about the water being piped onto path 31 – Red Lane. CB has asked Simon for advice regarding this and about the dog gates. CB also want to	

	get the invoice for work done in the spring on our paths and would like to get this before	
	the end of our accounting year so that we can reclaim the VAT. 9 May 2019 Still no	***
1.5	response or invoice received. 4 July no change.	JV
4.7	(7 th March §9.2) JM raised the observation about possible unplanned development at	
	Blackpool farm and in the field up the Bridleway at the side of Barton Court. Council agreed that Chair should send an email to NDDC Planning Enforcement raising the issue.	
	This has been done and two incident numbers allocated. Reminder sent to planning as	
	their 8-week response promise had passed. No update received. MP offered to	
	investigate with planning. MY chased and reply received 24 June "At this stage the	
	owners of the land have not been written out to, but we aim to complete that action before	
	your council meeting on the 4th July. For your information if you can advise the	
	councillors that the enforcement team are working below capacity at the moment and	
	therefore progress may be slowed down in the near future." Nothing has been further	
	received.	Clerk
5.0	Matters arising from meeting dated 9 th May 2019	
5.1	County Council News.	
3.1	Councillor Davis distributed her report which will be attached as an annex.	Closed
5.2	District Council News.	
	No report due to absence of MP.	Closed
5.3	Chris and Ray Comer have done a great job refurbishing the telephone box. They do	
	need some spare parts to complete the job. What is needed are 2 x TELEPHONE glass	
	signs as existing ones crazed (one is plastic), 2 small glass panels, 4 large metal frames	
	(inside to hold glass panels) and 2 small frames. Total cost is £109.80. This is parts	
	£81.50, shipping £10.00 and VAT £18.30. RFO stated council could afford this	
	expenditure and council voted to approve. MY to order on line and claim back costs.	MY
5.4	Parish Clerk submitted expenses for April to June 2019 totalling £90.97. Council authorised RFO	Closed
	to pay.	
6.0	Ethics and Standards. As a result of the training received on 4 June from NDDC for new	
0.0	Councillors the Chair wished to brief this topic in Council. Although there are no	
	concerns with the Councillors CB stressed the importance of behaviour and also that	
	predetermination of a matter (deciding an outcome before a meeting for example) is	
	illegal and could be challenged. CB referred councillors to the briefing material that had	
	been circulated.	Closed
7.0	Council Insurance. It was suggested by NDDC that Parish Councils consider having	
	insurance cover as they are not covered by NDDC. MY took advice from DALC and	
	obtained two quotes from specialist brokers. Councillors discussed particular local need	
	and decided that as we do not; own any buildings, employ anyone or run public functions	Cl 1
8 O	that we do not need cover. Council addressed the planning application received REFERENCE 66804 for an	Closed
8.0	EXTENSION TO DWELLING AT LOXHORE MILL. All councillors had reviewed the	
	documents in advance of the meeting and unanimously approved the application. MY to	
	write to NDDC planning accordingly.	Closed
9.0	The RFO reported that the accounts for 2018_9 had been audited and that no income or	
	expenditure had occurred since the last meeting. CB will prepare for the Parish website	
	1. End of year accounts 2018-19	
	2. Annual Internal audit 2018-9	
	3. Notice of Public Rights 2018-9	
	4. Expenditure over £100	
	5. Annual Governance Statement.	
	Treasurer's report 01.04.9 – 04-07-20 Year to Date	

	Bank balance 01.04.19		7,155.29	
	INCOME			
	N.D.D.C Parish Grant	152.00		
	N.D.D.C Precept	350.00		
	N.D.D.C Grant assistance	1.27		
	HMRC - VAT refund	0.00		
	N.D.D.C grant re broadband	0.00		
	Devon C.C Highway maintenance funding	0.00		
	N.D.D.C Grant towards WiFi	0.00		
			503.27	
			7,658.56	
	EXPENDITURE			
	DALC subscription	60.79		
	Clerk's expenses	0.00		
	Village Hall - Maintenance grant	0.00		
	P.C.C Burial ground grant	0.00		
	Snow clearing	0.00		
	Highway Maintenance Fund – Tarmac	0.00		
	Transparency code (website etc.)	0.00		
	Lineal Software – re broadband	0.00		
		_	60.79	
			7,597.77	
	Allocated:	•		
	P3 money		1,075.71	
	Transparency Code Funding		438.36	
	Parish maintenance fund		509.00	
	Highway maintenance fund		3,389.93	
		•	5,413.00	
	Non Ring-fenced Funds		2,184.77	
			,	
	Per Bank Account		7,597.77	
	Plus VAT to be reclaimed		85.51	
		_	7,683.28	Closed
		-		
10.0	Chair's Business			
10.1	Councillor Webber. CB informed council that Di We			
	while and that she had tendered her resignation. Coun			
	accepted her resignation and wish her all speed in retu NDDC.	irning to good nea	iui. iviy to inform	MY
11.0	Next meeting			
	The Chair closed the meeting at 18:55, thanking every	yone for attending	. The next meeting	
	will be held on Thursday 5 th September 2019 at 18:00			Closed

Minutes approved by Chair	Date
WHITHES ADDIOVED DV CHAIL	